
 

 

 

 

TO:  Cannon Falls City Council 

FROM: Neil Jensen, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Concept Plan for a 79 Unit Apartment Complex at 415 Hickory Drive 

DATE: August 17, 2021 

 

 

Concept Plan for the Keller-Baartman 79-Unit Apartment Complex at 415 Hickory Drive, 

(McCannonball Lot)  A Planning Commission meeting was held Monday, August 9, 2021 to 

discuss a concept plan for Andy Baartman of Keller-Baartman Properties, XIV, LLC, who 

presented a Concept Plan for a 79-unit apartment complex at 415 Hickory Drive.   

 

Process 

Procedurally this project is fairly complex. It involves multiple approvals – TIF, Rezone, PUD – 

going through multiple entities – EDA, Planning Commission, City Council. The EDA and the 

City Council are responsible for the TIF process and approvals. The Planning Commission and 

City Council are responsible for the Rezone and PUD process and approvals. The Concept Plan 

before the Council tonight is the first step of a three step PUD process:  

• Concept Plan - First, the Planning Commission and Council each consider the concept 

plan. This is a general project review to determine if the City believes the project is 

appropriate. The goal here is to provide direction to the developer for the project as a 

whole and if there are any specific concerns the developer needs to consider/address in 

the development stage.  

• Development Stage - Second, the Planning Commission and Council each consider the 

preliminary plan. This step includes a public hearing before the Planning Commission 

along with published and mailed notice of the hearing. The public hearing would be on 

both the PUD plans and the rezoning. This step includes most of the detailed plan 

preparation and review. Staff plans to bring this stage to the Planning Commission on 

September 13 and to the Council on September 21. 

• Final Plan - Third, the Planning Commission and Council each consider the final plan.  

 

At each step, the developer presents the required information, staff reviews the information and 

provides a report for the Planning Commission, the Planning Commission considers the matter 

and makes a recommendation to the Council, and then the Council reviews and makes a final 

decision.  

 

Project Details 

This lot is currently zoned B-2 General Business District, PID #527300010. 

 

 



 

The apartment complex will include 79 units with a mix of efficiency (24 units), 1 bedroom (33 

units), 2 bedroom (19 units), and 3 bedroom (3 units).  143 parking spaces (56 covered parking; 

4 ADA designated), which allows for 1.75 spaces per dwelling unit. 

 

The first floor will have covered parking, office, lounge, community room, fitness room, 

mail/package area, computer room, meeting room and 2 dwelling units.  The second floor will 

have 25 units, and the third and fourth floors will have 26 units each.  Outdoor space will include 

a grilling area, dog park and patio area. 

 

One-bedroom units will consist of 42% of the unit mix, followed by 30% efficiency, 24% two- 

bedroom, and 4% will be three-bedroom.  The efficiency units will start at 480 sq. ft. 

 

The following exhibits are enclosed to further describe the proposal: 

 

1. Development Application from Andy Baartman of Keller-Baartman 

2. McCannonball Subdivision Plat 

3. Concept site plan 

a. Parking 

b. Floor Plan/Unit Mix 

c. Elevation 

4. R-4 Zoning Ordinance 

5. Planned Unit Development Ordinance 

6. Draft of Tax Increment Financing Plan 

7. Full Color Photo of Site 

8. 4 Full Color Photos of Proposed Apartment Building (from Zumbrota) 

9. Neighboring City Maps Showing Apartment Placement 

10. City GIS Map Showing Possible Open Space 

11. Cannon Falls Comprehensive Plan Sections 

12. Goodhue County Housing Study 

 

Requested Waivers 

The developer is pursuing a rezone of the property to R4 and using the PUD process in order to 

seek several exceptions to the R4 zoning regulations. The following are the requested exceptions: 

 

79 Units 

--24 Studios (30%) 10 units at $875.00; 14 units at $825  (R-4 Ordinance requires no 

more than 10% studios) 

--33 1 BR (42%) 17 units at $1175; 16 units at $1125 

--19 2 BR (24%) 13 units at $1275; 6 units at $1200 

--3 3 BR (4%) 3 units at $1325 

 

 



 

Floor Area 

 Unit Type  KB   City Code 

 Studio   480-534 sq. ft.  500 sq. ft.     

 1 BR   715-972 sq. ft.  700 sq. ft. 

 2 BR   1184-1200 sq. ft. 800 sq. ft. 

 3 BR   1200+   880 sq. ft. 

 

Height 

 4 stories but under 60 ft. tall  (Ordinance for R-4 is 3 stories) 

 

Parking 

 143 Spaces: 56 indoor; 87 outdoor; 4 ADA 

 1.75 spaces per unit  (Ordinance states 2.25 per unit) 

 

§ 152.566  DEVELOPMENT DENSITY. 

   The maximum development density shall be determined by the following lot area per unit 

standards. 

  

Elderly senior housing 1,000 square feet per unit 

Multiple-family dwellings 2,500 square feet per unit 

Townhouse, quadraminium 4,000 square feet per unit 

  

(Prior Code, § 11-56-7)  (Ord. 258, passed 5-4-2006) 

 

Proposal is for 79 units.  79 x 2,500 sq. ft.= lot area of 197.750 sq. ft. to meet code.  (This would equal 

4.539 or 4.54 acres at 43,560 sq. ft. per acre).   

 

3.25 acres x 43,560 sq. ft per acre= 141,570 total lot size.  Divided by 2,500 sq ft. per unit equals 56.62 

units or 57 units allowed on 3.25 acres. 

 

 

The Council should consider whether these are exceptions are reasonable. While a final decision 

is not required tonight, any direction will be beneficial for the developer to use in creating 

detailed plans. If the Council is not willing to grant the exceptions as requested, informing 

developer at this point will allow developer to adapt the plans. If the project moves forward and 

is ultimately approved, the Council be asked to adopt a rezoning ordinance which will rezone the 

property to R4 PUD and will list any exceptions granted.  

 



 

Planning Commission Review 

The Planning Commission reviewed the Concept Plan on August 9, 2021. The Planning 

Commission voted 3-3 on recommending the project to the Council. The Planning Commission 

was generally in support of additional housing but had a number of concerns: 

• Industrial area— the location of housing in an industrial area may create too much noise 

for a residential development 

• Density per acre—does this project meet the density requirements? 

• Parking reduction—will it become very congested, where will visitors park? 

• Traffic study – a traffic study was recommended  

• Building height code is 45’; this is 60’.  Will it be a concern for our fire department? 

• Open space—there should be some as part of the project 

• Safety of children living in the apartment with no open space or sidewalks 

• Will Triangle Auto be pushed out because of their business noise, or other businesses as 

well? 

• Feasibility study – should there be a feasibility study for this project.  

 

The main concern expressed by the Planning Commission was that this may be the wrong spot in 

the City for such a project. It was suggested that this was a good project but that there are better 

spots in the City for it.  

 

 

 

Conclusion 

The Council should consider if the proposed project is appropriate. If the project is not 

appropriate, the Council should deny the concept plan with specific findings as to why the 

project is not appropriate. If the project is appropriate, the Council should approve the concept 

plan with specific direction to the developer on any areas of concern, including specifically the 

requested exceptions and any follow up desired in regards to the Planning Commission’s 

concerns. The developer will then proceed with developing detailed plans for the project to be 

brought back to the Planning Commission and Council as part of the development stage. While 

this stage is a big picture concept review, it will be beneficial to the developer and the project if 

the Council provides any specific feedback it has at this time to give the developer direction on 

developing the detailed plans.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



CITY OF CANNON FALLS 

GOODHUE COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2572 

 

CONCEPT PLAN FOR KELLER-BAARTMAN 79-UNIT APARTMENT COMPLEX 

AT 415 HICKORY DRIVE 

 

 

 WHEREAS, Andy Baartman of Keller-Baartman has made application for a 79-unit 

apartment complex at 415 Hickory Drive, PID #527300010 as regulated by the Zoning 

Ordinance; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the purpose of this request is to acquire approval of the Concept Plan for the 

Keller-Baartman 79-Unit Apartment Complex. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Cannon Falls City Council finds the granting of the Concept Plan is 

reasonable and in conformance with the City of Cannon Falls Comprehensive Plan. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Cannon Falls City Council grants 

approval of the Concept Plan for the Keller-Baartman 79-unit apartment complex at 415 Hickory 

Drive and recommends that Keller-Baartman consider the Council’s directions when developing 

plans for the project. 

 

ADOPTED by the Council this 17th day of August 2021. 

 

 

 

        ______________________________ 

        Steve Gesme, Mayor Pro-Tem 

 

 

 

ATTEST:______________________________ 

                Neil L. Jensen, City Administrator 

 


























































































































































